
For requests for further information
Contact  Katie Small
Tel:       01270 686465
E-Mail:    katie.small@cheshireeast.gov.uk with any apologies

Children and Families Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

Agenda
Date: Monday, 27th March, 2017
Time: 2.00 pm
Venue: Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road, 

Sandbach CW11 1HZ

The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press. 
Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons 
indicated on the agenda and in the report.

It should be noted that Part 1 items of Cheshire East Council decision making and 
Overview and Scrutiny meetings are audio recorded and the recordings will be uploaded to 
the Council’s website

PART 1 – MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT

1. Apologies for Absence  

2. Minutes of Previous meeting  (Pages 3 - 6)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 30 January 2017

3. Declarations of Interest  

To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any disclosable pecuniary and 
non-pecuniary interests in any item on the agenda.

4. Whipping Declarations  

mailto:katie.small@cheshireeast.gov.uk


To provide an opportunity for Members to declare the existence of a party whip in relation to 
any item on the agenda.

5. Public Speaking/Open Session  

A total period of 15 minutes is allocated for members of the public to make a statement(s) on 
any matter that falls within the remit of the Committee.

Individual members of the public may speak for up to 5 minutes, but the Chairman will decide 
how the period of time allocated for public speaking will be apportioned, where there are a 
number of speakers.

Note: In order for officers to undertake any background research, it would be helpful if 
members of the public contacted the Scrutiny officer listed at the foot of the agenda, at least 
one working day before the meeting to provide brief details of the matter to be covered.

6. Children Centre Provision  

To receive a presentation on the impact of the changes to Children Centre provision.

7. Children and Families Performance Scorecard - Quarter 3, 2016-17  (Pages 7 - 
14)

To receive an overview of performance across the Children and Families Service for quarter 
3 of 2016-17.

8. Annual Education Report  

To receive a report of the Director of Education and 14-19 Skills – to follow

9. Forward Plan  (Pages 15 - 16)

To give consideration to the areas of the forward plan which fall within the remit of the 
Committee.

10. Work Programme  (Pages 17 - 24)

To give consideration to the work programme



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

held on Monday, 30th January, 2017 at Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, 
Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

PRESENT

Councillor Rhoda  Bailey (Chairman)
Councillor S Pochin (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors B Burkhill, B Dooley, I Faseyi, D Flude, M Grant, G Merry and 
S Edgar

In Attendance

Councillor G Heyes
M Bayley - Head of Service: Infrastructure and Outcomes
S Hodgekiss - Land & Sites Coordinator
J Forster - Director of Education and 14-19 Skills
N Moorhouse - Director of Children’s Social Care
T Ryan - Director of Children's Prevention & Support

64 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors M Deakin and J Macrae

65 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no apologies for absence

66 WHIPPING DECLARATIONS 

There were no whipping declarations

67 PUBLIC SPEAKING/OPEN SESSION 

There were no members of the public present wishing to speak

68 NEGLECT/INNOVATION FUND 

 The Committee received a presentation on Cheshire East Neglect Strategy and 
the next steps in its refresh. The presentation detailed:

 The current data. As at December 2016, 117 individuals were on a plan 
for neglect.

 The previous neglect strategy required refreshing and practitioners were 
not using the identified tools. A new strategy would be developed by 
March 2017.



 The new strategy aimed to improved response to concern around neglect 
in a timescale that met the needs of the child and achieve positive 
outcomes for children.

The presentation also detailed the success of Project Crewe, which was designed 
to reduce the number of children escalating to Child Protection status, deliver 
statutory services at a lower basic operating cost and reduce the number of 
repeat referrals to Children in Need status. Project Crewe had been in place for 
15 months and there was early evidence of a reduction in referrals, escalations 
and case loads. Social workers were now focussed on increasingly complex 
cases, this had enabled a focus on children experiencing significant harm from 
neglect. The timeliness of assessments, plans and visits to children had all 
improved, leading to improved outcomes for children as the quality of social work 
interventions were being enhanced.

Project Crewe would be expanded to cover the whole of the Cheshire East 
footprint and project Macclesfield would be established in April 2017. Funding 
from Cheshire East was in place for Project Crewe and Project Macclesfield 
which would be available until July 2018. Members were concerned about the 
sufficiency of funding for the expansion of Project Crewe and agreed that this 
should be monitored by the Committee.

It was agreed that the Committee would give consideration to the formal 
evaluation report of the project, which was to be produced by the DfE, once it had 
been completed.  

RESOLVED

1. That the evaluation report be submitted to the Committee in due course. 
2. That the funding for the expansion of Project Crewe be monitored by the 

Committee.

69 SCHOOL ORGANISATION CAPACITY 

Members received an update on the school organisation and capital services re-
alignment of service delivery and clarification of policies and procedures. The 
purpose of which was to:

 Have robust, transparent and effective procedures for school place 
planning which secured sufficiency of places through effective 
management of capital projects.

 Have more strategic planning of need which combined available funding 
stream – basic need and section 106 monies with a 3 year overall 
strategy. 

 Liaise more strategically and operationally with corporate services to 
achieve clarity of methodologies in order to achieve consistent joint 
working.

 Establish project management principles against key projects resulting in 
a single conversation.

Members suggested that S106 monies should also be sought from affordable 
housing providers and stressed the importance of having discussions with head 



teachers regarding local need and finding a solution to meet local need rather 
than providing for those living further afield. 

It was noted that if an academy chose to increase its PAN, Cheshire East would 
not provide resources to pay for facilities as funded school expansions must be a 
Cheshire East Councilstrategic decision.

RESOLVED

1. That the update be received.
2. That the validated school results be received at a future meeting of the 

Committee.

70 FORWARD PLAN 

Consideration was given to the areas of the forward plan which fell within the 
remit of the Committee.

RESOLVED

That the forward plan be received.

71 WORK PROGRAMME 

Consideration was given to the work programme. Councillor S Pochin informed 
the Committee that further to the Call In on Available Routes to Schools, 5 
Councillors had called a special Council meeting with a view to requesting 
Cabinet to reconsider its decision and a paper would be prepared outlining new 
information and evidence that had been received.

Consideration was given to the list of questions to ask CAHMs partners at the 
spot light review on 26 June 2017.

RESOLVED

1. That the work programme be approved.
2. That the questions relating to CAHMs be approved subject to questions 

20 being amended to include waiting times for services.

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 4.00 pm

Councillor Rhoda  Bailey (Chairman)





Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting: 27 March 2017

Report of: Kath O’Dwyer, Executive Director of Children’s Services and Deputy Chief 
Executive.

Subject/Title: Children and Families Performance Scorecard – Quarter 3, 2016-17

Portfolio Holder: Cllr Liz Durham

1. Report Summary
1.1. This report and the attached performance scorecard provide an overview of 

performance across the Children and Families Service for quarter 3 of 2016-17. 

2. Recommendation

2.1. Scrutiny is recommended to: 

a) Note the contents of the report and scorecard; and

b) Scrutinise areas where expected levels of performance are not being met.

3. Other Options Considered

3.1. Scrutiny may want to consider the performance of the Service more or less 
frequently.

4. Reasons for Recommendation
4.1 One of the key areas of focus for the Children and Families Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee is to highlight areas of poor performance and to scrutinise 
the effectiveness of plans in place to improve services. Overview and Scrutiny 
has an important role to play in the performance management systems of the 
local authority.  The Children and Families performance scorecard provides 
essential data, along with qualitative information, to measure the effectiveness 
of services within children’s services.  This report and scorecard will be 
provided to Scrutiny on a quarterly basis to enable the Committee to maintain 
an overview of performance across the Service.

5. Background

5.1. This is the fifth performance scorecard presented to the Children and Families 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee following Ofsted’s inspection of Children’s 
Services in July 2015.  This report and scorecard sets out the performance 
against the agreed measures across the Children and Families Directorate for 
quarter 3 (1st October – 31st December 2016).  



5.2. The performance scorecard details the following:

 Measure – details of each performance measure  
 Polarity – whether it is good to have the measure high or low
 Statistical neighbour average – gives a comparator against local 

authorities with similar characteristics to Cheshire East. Cheshire East’s 
statistical neighbours in rank order are:

 Cheshire West and Chester
 Warwickshire
 Central Bedfordshire
 Warrington
 Hampshire
 North Yorkshire
 East Riding of Yorkshire
 Solihull
 North Somerset
 West Berkshire

 National average – gives a national comparator figure
 Target – this is either a national target, eg, adoption timeliness, or a local 

one set by the service to provide a ‘good/outstanding’ service
 Year end 2015-16 – enables Members to compare existing performance 

to that in the previous year
 Quarterly performance – enables Members to compare performance 

from quarter to quarter
 RAG – this is a rating of red, amber, green based on current 

performance against the expected level of performance
 Direction of travel – this provides the direction of travel this quarter and 

whether this is positively or negatively in an upward/downward trajectory  
or static 

 Comments – this provides a general commentary on the information 
presented

 C&YP Plan Priority – links the measure to the relevant priority within the 
Children and Young People’s Plan

 Corporate Priority – links the measure to the relevant priority within the 
Council’s Corporate Plan

5.3. Since quarter 2 additional data has been provided with regards to targets. 
Statistical neighbour and National average data has also been amended to 
reflect the statistical first releases from the Department of Education relating to 
the CIN census (SFR52 – 2016) and the SEN2 return (SFR17 - 2016). 
Amendments have also been made to the 90% attendance indicators so they 
now reflect Primary and Secondary attendance on a termly basis. 

5.4 On 13th December 2016 Cheshire East took part in an external Northwest peer 
challenge involving scrutiny and challenge around our local data and 
performance. This has helped inform ongoing development of the scorecard, 
and in particular with regards to the special educational needs indicator set.   



6. Performance Overview

6.1. The performance scorecard at Appendix 1 includes 69 separate measures 
covering all areas of the service. Some of these measures are non-
performance related, eg those that relate to population cohorts.  In total, 53 of 
these measures relate to performance and have been RAG rated.  A 
breakdown summary is set out follows:

Performance 
Measures

Red Amber Green n/a Total

This quarter 1 15 37 16 69

Previous quarter 3 19 30 17 69

6.2. The above table shows that there has been some improvement in Children and 
Families performance from the previous quarter; there has been an increase in 
those measures judged green and a reduction in red RAG rated measures.   
The red RAG rating relates to the completion of initial health care assessments 
for cared for children.  This has been highlighted at the Corporate Parenting 
Board and through the Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) and is 
subject to regular scrutiny and deep dives through both of these boards.

6.3. Whilst it is important to look at the current performance around particular 
measures, it is equally important to look at the direction of travel and to RAG 
rate this in relation to performance, ie, whether this is improving (green), 
staying broadly the same (amber) or getting worse (red).  A summary of the 
direction of travel of performance across the service is detailed below. 

Direction of Travel Red Amber Green n/a Total

This quarter 1 23 44 1 69

Previous quarter 2 19 42 6 69

6.4. The direction of travel shows broadly that most measures of performance are 
on a positive trajectory, and this trajectory has remained in line with the 
previous quarter.  

7. Wards Affected and Local Ward Members

7.1. The performance measures relate to all ward areas.  

8. Implications of Recommendation 

8.1. Policy Implications  



7.1.1 There are no direct policy implications, although low or high performance in a 
certain area may lead to suggest changes in policy to address them.

8.2. Legal Implications

7.2.1 There are a no direct legal implications.

8.3. Financial Implications

7.3.1 Although there are no direct financial implications related to this report, 
performance measures may be used as an indicator of where more or less 
funding is needed at a service level.

7.4 Equality Implications

7.4.1 Members may want to use the performance scorecard to ensure that services 
are targeted at more vulnerable children and young people.

9. Access to Information

9.1. The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting 
the report writer:

Name: Gill Betton
Designation: Head of Service, Children’s Development & Partnerships
Tel. No: 07764 166262
Email: gill.betton@cheshireeast.gov.uk



Children's Services Scorecard - Quarter 3, 2016-17 Appendix 1

PI Ref Measure Polarity Stat Neigh
Av

National
Av Target Yr. end

15-16 Qu 4 Qu 1
16-17

Qu 2
16-17

Qu 3
16-17

Yr. end
16-17 RAG

Quarterly
dir of
travel

Comments 
C&YP Plan Priority Corporate

Priority 

Safeguarding

1.1 Number of contacts 2600-
2800 9842 2710 2713 2648 2720

The rolling 12 month period suggests that between 2600 and 2800 contacts a
quarter is reflective of the demographic of Cheshire East. This represents a
rate of between 346 - 373 referrals per 10,000 children in any given quarter. It
is difficult to compare this with other local authorities due to the differing
front door arrangements.

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

1.2 Number of referrals 850-950 3749 970 940 931 809

Based on a rolling 12 month period an expected target range for referrals
would be between 850-950. Q3 has seen a dip in the number of referrals
below this expected range against an increase in overall contacts. This may
be because early help brokerage is more established and more cases are
being supported by an early help offer.

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

1.3 % contacts to referrals 35%-40% 38% 36% 35% 35% 30%
This has dipped below expected thresholds however early indications show
a rise in the % of contacts being passed to early help brokerage (a rise from
an average of 25% in quarter 2 to 33% in quarter 3.

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

1.4 Number of repeat referrals 829 225 239 232 177

The rate of re-referrals has reduced in quarter 3 together with a small
reduction in the number of referrals overall. This may be an early indication
that the improvements in support and planning in the last 12-24 months,
together with the early help offer, are having lasting positive impacts on
families in CE.

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

1.5 % repeat referrals Low is good 20.8% 22.3% <20% 22% 23% 25% 25% 22%

Cheshire East remains within statistical neighbours' performance based on
2014-15 published benchmarking data. The latest regional comparable data
from quarter 1 showed repeat referrals ranged from 11.4% in Halton to 38%
in Liverpool with a regional average of 22.9% . This suggests that CE may be
now performing slightly better than the region on average.

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

1.6
Number of children that went missing 5 times or more from
home (quarterly figure is 5 or more times in any month in that
quarter)

Low is good 13 supressed supressed supressed supressed

In the third quarter of 2016-17 the figure remains suppressed because they
are so low. This is a positive picture as it indicates that where there are
issues, the appropriate multi agency plan is in place and that individuals are
not at risk from the dangers associated with going missing from home. In the
9 months there have been 7 individuals who have gone missing 5 or more
times in total.

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

1.7 % of assessments completed within 45 days High is good 84% 83% 85% 89% 85% 85% 83% 87%

There has been an increase in assessments completed within 45 days in this
quarter and  the year to date figure for completion rates stands at 85%, in
line with last year. Performance remains slightly ahead of NW and England
published averages.

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

1.8 Number of children in need (CIN) - local definition 1133 1133 1133 1054 978

Over the last quarter the number of children open at CIN level has reduced.
This could be reflective of more timely assessment and slightly lower
referral rates, together with the embedding of early help brokerage. We may
also be beginning to see the impact of Project Crewe on sustained
improvement in families as a result of more intense support.

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

1.9 Rate of children in need (CIN) per 10,000 - local definition 145 - 165 150.9 150.9 150.9 147.4 130.4

Rate of children in need is calculated using the population figure of 75,000.
The recent dip is slightly lower than previous levels seen within Cheshire
East. Across CIN/CP/C4C there is approximately a 9% drop in cases overall
since the start of the year. 

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

1.10 % initial child protection conference (ICPC) within 15 days of
Section 47 enquiry (S47) High is good 88% 77% 90% 68.0% 67% 75% 80% 80%

Whilst lower than our statistical neighbour average, Cheshire East's
performance is better than the national average and a substantial
improvement on the 2015-16 outturn. Quarter 3 has maintained performance
overall and in the month of December the performance was 100%. This
suggests that the action plan around timely notification to the Safeguarding
Unit is working. Any cases not meeting the 15 day target are closely
scrutinised and reported weekly to ensure management oversight

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

1.11 Number of children subject to child protection (CP) plan
[includes child sex exploitation  (CSE) Plans ] 260-300 273 273 268 282 263

Whilst at the lower end of our statistical neighbour cohort, audits suggest
that the right individuals are on a plan the right children are being stepped
up to child protection and that this is a number reflective of our demographic
profile.

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

1.12 Rate of children subject to child protection (CP) plan per
10,000 41.5 43.1 35-40 37.2 36.3 35.7 37.5 35.1

Whilst at the lower end of our statistical neighbour cohort, audits suggest
that the right individuals are on a plan, the right children are being stepped
up to child protection and that this is a number reflective of our demographic
profile.

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

1.13 % children becoming subject to a child protection (CP) plan for
2nd/ subsequent time Low is good 17.3% 17.9% <15% 22.9% 22.4% 23.3% 23.9% 6.9%

Quarter 3 has shown considerable improvement with only 7 individuals
being made subject to a repeat child protection plan. This has reduced the
year to date percentage to 18%, which is broadly in line with published
England and comparator data. Most recent comparison data in the NW in
terms of performance for quarter 1 of 2016-17 indicates percentages ranging
from 10.3% to 22.6%. 

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

1.14 Number of child protection (CP) plans over 2yrs Low is good supressed 2.1% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

This indicator looks at length of time a case was opened at point of closure.
All children subject of a plan for 12 months+ are actively tracked with robust
independent oversight. This current performance is positive and indicates
that these vulnerable children do not experience drift. 

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

1.15 Number of children on a child sexual exploitation (CSE) plan 8 8 6 7 9

This number represents the individuals who are on a specific child sexual
exploitation (CSE) plan. There are other individuals we are supporting where
CSE actions form a part of an overarching CIN/CP/LAC plan. In addition,
where any agency has concerns around individuals they are brought to the
multi-agency CSE group for discussion and possible tracking.

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

1.16 % child protection (CP) children reviewed in timescales (year
to date fig) High is good 95.8% 93.7% 100% 99.5% 100% 99% 99% 98%

Although a very slight dip, it represents only 2 families with only a few days
delay. Performance in this area remains ahead of statistical neighbour and
national averages. This is reflective of improved practice around timely
notification and arrangement of review conferences. It is important to note
that there will always be the occasional unforeseen circumstance that will
prevent performance being 100% continually.

1 Having A Voice Outcome 5

Cared for Children



PI Ref Measure Polarity Stat Neigh
Av

National
Av Target Yr. end

15-16 Qu 4 Qu 1
16-17

Qu 2
16-17

Qu 3
16-17

Yr. end
16-17 RAG

Quarterly
dir of
travel

Comments 
C&YP Plan Priority Corporate

Priority 

2.1 Number of cared for children 380-430 387 387 400 398 420

It is being reported nationally and locally that numbers of cared for children
are increasing.  Cheshire East remains at the lower end of our statistical
neighbour group, with latest figures from CWAC and Warrington showing
much higher rates. We have amended our target to reflect a range in which
we consider our cared for population to be appropriate.

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

2.2 Rate per 10,000 cared for children 56 60 50.7-57.3 51 51.5 53.3 53 56

Oct 2016 - DfE produced comparator data for statutory returns as at March
2016. This places Cheshire East in the mid range of our statistical neighbour
group range of between 35 -79 per 10,000 of population. Nearest neighbours
CWAC and Warrington reported 71 and 78 per 10,000 respectively. NW
average as at 31/3/16 was 82 per 10,000.

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

2.3 % cared for children with 3 or more placements in year Low is good data not yet
released <12% 12.2% 12.2% 13.8% 13.7% 14.0%

This figure is a rolling year to date position and relates to 59 individuals.
Placement stability is currently an issue for CE and a working group has been
convened in order to achieve a greater understanding of the issues and
deliver an action plan  in response. Issues being considered relate to earlier
identification of risk of breakdown and re focusing key resources. 

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

2.4 % cared for children in long term stability placement High is good data not yet
released 75% 66.7% 66.7% 70.2% 64.8% 62.2%

Placement stability is currently an issue for CE and a working group has been
convened in order to achieve a greater understanding of the issues and
deliver an action plan  in response. Issues being considered relate to earlier
identification of risk of breakdown and re focusing key resources.

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

2.5 % cared for children reviews in timescales High is good 95% 96% 97% 97% 89% 99%
There has been a substantial improvement in the percentage of reviews
being held in timescale; in December the one that was held out of timescale
was only 5 days (due on the Thursday and held the following Monday).

1 Having A Voice Outcome 5

2.6 Number of cared for children in internal foster care (including
friends and family placements) High is good 215 210 210 191 188 200

When we exclude CE foster carers who have been approved for respite
provision only, the current CE foster care bed occupancy rate is 84% which is
an improvement on the previous quarter. There is also a substantial
reduction in the number of beds not available from 37 to 17.

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

2.7 Number of cared for children in external foster care Low is good 85 89 89 97 88 90
83% of the individuals in external foster care are placed on a full care order
with plans to remain in placement with carer long term/ until they reach 18.

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

2.8 Number cared for children placed over 20 miles from home
address (Cheshire East and out of borough) Low is good 69 69 77 89 91

The 91 excludes unaccompanied asylum seeking children.  Although there is
a slight increase in quarter 3, over 25% of these are placed either with
family/ relatives or in adoption placements.

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

2.9
Number of cared for children that went missing 5 times or
more (quarterly figure is 5 or more times in any month in that
quarter)

Low is good 5 16 8 5 5 5

This is positive and relates to the number of Cheshire East children who
went missing from care 5 or more times in any month in the quarter and
includes individuals placed both in Cheshire East and out of the borough
(This excludes ChiCOLA's (i.e children placed in CE by other local authorities
who go missing from placement and are found by Cheshire police). Missing
from care interviews are offered and the feedback used to inform changes to
individuals support plans. 

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

2.10 % of initial health assessments requested within 48 hours of
coming into care High is good 85% -

90% 11% 20% 73% 65% 87%

Quarter 3 has shown a considerable improvement in the number of requests
made in  timely fashion with the overall year to date figure for 9 months
showing at 76%. The continued delays in completion may suggest that there
is a capacity issue with paediatricians being able to complete the
assessments rather than a delay in being notified.

4 Being Healthy Outcome 5

2.11 % of initial health assessments completed by paediatricians
within 20 days High is good 100% 34% 12% 38% 58% 37%

Performance against this measure sits with Health, who are currently
carrying out a root cause analysis around how this performance can be
improved.  This poor performance has been highlighted at the Corporate
Parenting Committee and through the Local Safeguarding Children Board
(LSCB) and is subject to regular scrutiny and deep dives through both of
these boards.

4 Being Healthy Outcome 5

2.12 % of children in care over 12 months with a health check in the
last year High is good 84% 90% 100% 80.0% 73.9% 71.2% 69.8% 75.0%

Of the 296 individuals recorded as being in care for over 12 months as at the
end of December 2016, 73 had either no health check date loaded or a health
check dated over 12 months (NB 15 had health checks dated Dec 2015
loaded). This is still a substantially improved position. A backlog in uploading
health check information is impacting on this percentage.

4 Being Healthy Outcome 5

Care Leavers

3.1 Number of care leavers 225 225 201 202 195

This represents all eligible, relevant and former relevant care leavers who
are supported with access to a Personal Advisor (PA) to offer help and
guidance as they move to independence together with financial support as
appropriate to individual needs.

5 Best Skills & Quals Outcome 3

3.2 % not In education, employment or training (NEET) Low is good 38% 42% 42% 47% 40% 46%

This figure relates to the 19th, 20th and 21st birthday cohort only and details
their latest status. When taking into account all individuals engaged in
positive activities leading towards entering into EET then this % reduces to
27%. Each individual will have a designated PA and work continues to engage
individuals where possible

5 Best Skills & Quals Outcome 3

3.3 % in suitable accommodation High is good 96% 96% 95% 95% 95% 94%

This relates to the 19th, 20th and 21st birthday cohort only. This includes
individuals currently in custody. Improved tracking in the care leavers service
means that these young people are known and work continues to engage
them where possible to improve their accommodation and support. 

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

Adoption
4.1 % of children ceased to be looked after due to adoption - year

to date fig
High is good 20% 12.8% 12.8% 21.0% 20.3% 15.0% This figure reflects 16 individuals out of 107 who have left care between

April and December.  In early January a further 6 individuals were adopted.
2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

4.2 % of children ceased to be looked after due to granting of
special guardianship order (SGO) - year to date fig High is good 12% 18.4% 18.4% 11.6% 11.4% 16.0%

This represents 17 individuals in the 9 months to December 2016. 2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

4.3 Number of children adopted (ytd) High is good 30 18 7 9 16 16

In addition to the 16 adoptions to December 2016 we have an additional 31
individuals with an adoption plan, 20 of which are living with their adoptive
family/ foster to adopt placement. Based on performance to date we are on
schedule to meet target set for this year.

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

4.4 % children who wait less than 16 months between entering
care and moving in with adoptive family High is good 58% 83% 78% 84% 84% 83%

This continues to be a focus to ensure that timely decisions are made to
ensure children and young people are in a permanent placement as quickly
as possible. There is now a specific Independent Reviewing Officer
identified to track the progress for these children to ensure there is no
delay.

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5



PI Ref Measure Polarity Stat Neigh
Av

National
Av Target Yr. end

15-16 Qu 4 Qu 1
16-17

Qu 2
16-17

Qu 3
16-17

Yr. end
16-17 RAG

Quarterly
dir of
travel

Comments 
C&YP Plan Priority Corporate

Priority 

4.5 Average number of days between entering care and moving in
with adoptive family (A1 national indicator) Low is good 426 545 545 936 678 678

Although this has been RAG rated amber, the story behind the data is very
positive.  This is due to the extremely positive outcome of children and
young people being adopted by foster carers after a number of years due to
a freestanding application. This is reflected in the reduced figure at 4.7
below.

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

4.6 Average number of days between placement order and match
with adoptive family  (A2 national indicator) Low is good 121 99 99 49 70 70 Whilst the number of days has increased it still remains well within the

national target of 121 and ahead of last year's position.
2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

4.7
Average number of days between entering care and moving in
with adoptive family/ foster carer who becomes adoptive
family

Low is good 426 477 477 243 265 265
Whilst the number of days has increased it still remains well within the
national target of 426 and a substantial improvement on last year's position.

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

Education and 14-19 Skills 
Virtual School

5.1
% attendance of children in care (quarterly figure is all cared
for children rather than those in care for 12mths which are
published figs)

High is good 95.9% 96.1% 95% 94% 94% 89% 94% 94%
Percentage attendance remains a high focus. 92 children had 100%
attendance last term and will be receiving certificates. Cases of poor
attendance without good reason are challenged by phone call/ letter.

5 Best Skills & Quals Outcome 3

5.2
% persistent absence of children in care (quarterly figure is all
cared 4 rather than those in care for 12mths which are
published figs)

Low is good 15% 15% 18% 11% 12%

There is a small increase in KS3/4 pupils who are persistently absent,
however this includes a number of new into care with very poor attendance
records (some as low as 9% who are very reluctant attenders). There are a
range of strategies and support systems in place to try and improve this.

5 Best Skills & Quals Outcome 3

5.3 Percentage of completed PEPs (Termly) High is good 52% 94%
There has been a new system of working put in place with the schools to
increase the return rate. An Apprentice has also been recruited to liaise with
the schools and chase completed PEPs on a regular basis.

5 Best Skills & Quals Outcome 3

Schools

6.1 % good or outstanding secondary schools High is good 76% 86.4% 86.4% 86.4% 76.0% 76.0%

The profile for secondary school Ofsted outcomes remains strong. The only
reason for the deduction is the addition of 3 schools (includes the University
Technical College, Pupil Referral Unit and Alternative Provision from
September 2016) yet to be inspected. 

5 Best Skills & Quals Outcome 3

6.2 % good or outstanding primary schools High is good 87% 92.7% 92.7% 92.7% 94.4% 94.4% The profile for primary schools remains very strong, which is positive
considering the high number of primary schools across the borough.

5 Best Skills & Quals Outcome 3

6.3 % good or outstanding special school High is good 80% 80% 80% 80% 80%
The only reason that the data shows a reduction from 100% is due to the
additional special school at Church Lawton which has not yet been inspected.

5 Best Skills & Quals Outcome 3

6.4 Number of fixed term exclusions starting in month Low is good 1889 441 474 269 493
We would expect this number to show an increase as the previous quarter
includes the Summer holidays.

5 Best Skills & Quals Outcome 3

6.5 Number of permanent exclusions starting in month Low is good 37 13 11 7 12

This relates to 11 secondary and 1 primary exclusion. The secondary
permanent exclusions :-  7 were for persistent disruptive behaviour, 2 for
assaults verbal/ physical, 1 bullying and 1 other.  Of these five are Year 11,
five are Year 10 and one Year 8. The primary exclusion was a child who also
has an EHCP. 

5 Best Skills & Quals Outcome 3

6.6 Number of fixed penalty notices issued Low is good 1056 298 189 19 20

Since 13th May 2016 Cheshire East has stopped issuing penalty notices for
leave of absence, requesting that schools to not send through any further
paperwork. Regular absence penalty notices have continued to be issued.
This is reflected in the substantial reduction in quarter 2 (summer term) and
quarter 3 (autumn term). 

5 Best Skills & Quals Outcome 3

6.7 Number of prosecutions Low is good 118 55 29 14 15

Since 13th May 2016 Cheshire East has stopped issuing penalty notices for
leave of absence, requesting that schools to not send through any further
paperwork. Regular absence penalty notices have continued to be issued.
This is reflected in the substantial reduction in quarter 2 (summer term) and
quarter 3 (autumn term). 

5 Best Skills & Quals Outcome 3

6.8 % of pupils with less than 90% attendance Primary school year
to date Low is good 8%

This has been amended to report Primary attendance only - Quarter 3
reflects the autumn term from Sept - Dec 2016. 

5 Best Skills & Quals Outcome 3

6.9 % of pupils with less than 90% attendance Secondary School
year to date Low is good 12%

This has been amended to report Secondary attendance only - quarter 3
reflects the autumn term from Sept - Dec 2016.

5 Best Skills & Quals Outcome 3

6.10 Current number of pupils being educated at home (year fig is
total number of unique individuals) Low is good 286 276 267 259 283

The number continues to follow the national trend and increase. A recent
review of systems has led to more comprehensive data being held and
service change has ensured that there is sufficient capacity to increase the
challenge back to schools and arrange visits to families.

5 Best Skills & Quals Outcome 3

Prevention and Support 
Prevention and Early Intervention

7.1 % of all 0-4 children registered at children's centre High is good 82% 82% 82% 82% 81% 79%

Registration is being maintained due to the collaborative approach with
health colleagues and children's centre managers ensuring that individuals
are informed of the support and offer available at the centres during their
antenatal care. It is expected that with the introduction of the new 'Parent
journey' programme, registrations will increase in 2017/18.

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

7.2 % of all 0-4 children engaged at children's centre (seen in last
6 mths) High is good 33% 24% 22% 32% 31%

The increased % in attendance has been maintained in quarter 3 despite the
start of the Autumn term when we know that given the high take up of the 3
& 4 year old offer many eligible children are accessing pre-school provision.

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 5

7.3 % eligible children taking up 2 year old offer (termly figure
only) High is good 72% 77% 77% 75% 69% 75%

Quarter 3 has improved as expected now we have the established cohort for
the September intake finalised and reconciled.

5 Best Skills & Quals Outcome 3



PI Ref Measure Polarity Stat Neigh
Av

National
Av Target Yr. end

15-16 Qu 4 Qu 1
16-17

Qu 2
16-17

Qu 3
16-17

Yr. end
16-17 RAG

Quarterly
dir of
travel

Comments 
C&YP Plan Priority Corporate

Priority 

7.4 % children taking up 3 and 4 year old offer (termly figure only) High is good 99% 97% 97%-99% 97%-99%

This is a range based on known data. We know the number of Cheshire East
children taking up the offer at settings in the borough, but we are not aware
of all those attending settings in other authorities. The population figures
are estimates taken from two years ago and the term in which a child
becomes eligible depends on when their birthday falls as they are eligible
the term following their 3rd birthday. The figures given assume no children
go out of the authority to claim their 3 and 4 year old funding, that the
population estimates are accurate and birthdays are distributed evenly
through the year.  

5 Best Skills & Quals Outcome 3

7.5 Number of families turned around (family focus) - claims
made at agreed points in the year High is good 21 19 9 62 118

Claims under the family focus criteria now total 118 for the year to date. This
shows continued improvement and reflects appropriate plans and support
mechanisms being provided by families to ensure sustained positive change
in their lives. 

2 Feel & Be Safe Outcome 6

Youth Support

8.1 Number of young people accessing the youth support service 1298 1006 1345

Quarter 3 often sees an increase in individuals accessing services due to the
cohort supported and changes in decisions around further education etc
following exam results. In addition there is an overall increase in provision
as a number of new projects are offered.

5 Best Skills & Quals Outcome 2

8.2 Number of young people not in education, employment or
training (NEET) individuals [yr. 12-14] Low is good 323 323 328 201 281

Of this cohort, 206 are available to the labour market with 97% either actively
seeking employment/ training or with start dates agreed. Of the 74 not
available to the labour market, 50% is due to parenting/ pregnancy and 48%
to illness.

5 Best Skills & Quals Outcome 2

8.3 % of young people not in education, employment or training
(NEET) individuals [yr. 12-14] Low is good 2.8% 2.8% 2.8% 3.1% 2.6% We continue to have an exceptionally high % rate in terms of supporting all

young people into EET.

5 Best Skills & Quals Outcome 2

8.4 Number of individuals where education, employment or
training (EET) status not known Low is good 45 45 30 1810 534

Since October there has been a substantial amount of work undertaken to
identify the destination of individuals in Year 14 (i.e 19 year olds post sixth
form). The destination of almost 1300 individuals have been clarified with
work underway to capture information on the remaining individuals. Many
of these will likely be on gap years pending deferred start at university.

5 Best Skills & Quals Outcome 2

Youth Offending Team
9.1 Number of young people sentenced to custody (quarterly fig) Low is good 7 supressed supressed 0

Quarter 2 data is suppressed due to the extremely low number. Quarter 3
data is not yet available.

4 Being Healthy &
Making Positive Choices

Outcome 1

9.2 Number of young people remanded to custody (quarterly fig) Low is good supressed supressed 0 0
Quarter 2 data is suppressed due to the extremely low number. Quarter 3
data is not yet available.

4 Being Healthy &
Making Positive Choices

Outcome 1

9.3 Number of first time entrants - rolling 12 month figure  (data
from police national computer) Low is good 94 94 71 62

Quarter 2 data was released in November 2016 so we are unlikely to get
quarter 3 until May 2017). This however continues to show a positive
downward trend

4 Being Healthy &
Making Positive Choices

Outcome 1

9.4 Rate of first time entrants - rolling 12 month figure (data from
police national computer) Low is good 369 281 281 212 186

Quarter 2 data was released in November 2016 so we are unlikely to get
quarter 3 until May 2017). This however continues to show a positive
downward trend

4 Being Healthy &
Making Positive Choices

Outcome 1

Special Educational Need (SEN)

10.1 Number of new education, health and care needs
assessments requests in month 268 79 85 77 66

The number of requests in each quarter relate to the number received into
the local authority from both parents and professionals rather than the
number subsequently heard and assessed at panel in the quarter.

6 Additional Needs
Additional Chances

Outcome 3

10.2 % of new education, health and care plans (EHCP) completed
with 20 weeks High is good 43.4 55.5 71.0% 61.2% 21.7% 30.0% 53.0%

There was a considerable improvement in both November and December
with 46% and 82% respectively completed in timescales. This suggests that
the benefit of additional staff and new robust scrutiny and challenge is
having a positive impact. 

6 Additional Needs
Additional Chances

Outcome 3

10.3
Number of ongoing transfers from statements of educational
need/learning difficulty assessments (LDA) to education,
health and care plans (EHCP) 

184 184 301 305 125
The number of transfers in progress will inevitably slow as the ratio of EHCP
to SEN reduces. Since September this has increased from 54% EHCP / 46%
SEN to 68% EHCP/ 32% SEN.

6 Additional Needs
Additional Chances

Outcome 3

10.4 Total number with an education, health and care plan (EHCP)
[accumulative] 794 794 880 982 1288

This is a steadily improving picture and has increased from 54% to 68% of the
total number between quarter 2 and quarter 3. 

6 Additional Needs
Additional Chances

Outcome 3

10.5 Total number with an education, health and care plan (EHCP)
or statement of educational need 1775 1775 1784 1828 1889

Total number as a proportion of our 0-17 population per 10,000 indicate that
we are comparable with both the NW, Statistical neighbours and England
average. 

6 Additional Needs
Additional Chances

Outcome 3



CE 16/17-36 
Strategic 
Partnership for 
Children and 
Young People's 
Emotional 
Health and 
Wellbeing

To grant authority to the 
relevant Portfolio Holders 
to invest resources to 
allow the implementation 
of projects to facilitate the 
emotional health and 
wellbeing programme. In 
particular, to enter into a 
memorandum of 
understanding with East 
Cheshire CCG and South 
Cheshire CCG for the 
delivery of the Emotionally 
Health Schools jointly 
funded project.

Cabinet 14 Mar 2017 Kath O'Dwyer, 
Deputy Chief 
Executive and 
Executive 
Director: People

N/A

Key Decision Decisions to be 
Taken

Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 

Decision

Proposed 
Consultation

How to make 
representation 
to the decision 

made

Private/
Confidential 

and 
paragraph 

number





Version 1 April 2009 (SH)

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

REPORT TO:  CHILDREN AND FAMILIES OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
____________________________________________________________________

Date of Meeting: 27 March 2017
Report of: Director of  Legal Services 
Subject/Title: Work Programme update

___________________________________                                                                      

1.0 Report Summary

1.1 To review items in the Work Programme listed in the schedule attached, 
together with any other items suggested by Committee Members.

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 That the work programme be reviewed.
2.2 That the questions relating to CAHMS, attached at Appendix B, be approved

3.0 Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 It is good practice to agree and review the Work Programme to enable effective 
          management of the Committee’s business.

4.0 Wards Affected

4.1 All

5.0 Local Ward Members 

5.1 Not applicable.

6.0 Policy Implications including - Carbon reduction 
                                                              - Health

6.1 Not known at this stage.

7.0 Financial Implications 

7.1 Not known at this stage.

8.0 Legal Implications 

8.1 None.



Version 1 April 2009 (SH)

9.0 Risk Management 

9.1 There are no identifiable risks.

10.0 Background and Options

10.1 The schedule attached has been updated following the last meeting of the 
committee.

10.2 Members are asked to review the schedule attached to this report, and if 
appropriate, add new items or delete items that no longer require any scrutiny 
activity. When selecting potential topics, Members should have regard to the 
Council’s new three year plan and also to the general criteria listed below, 
which should be applied to all potential items when considering whether any 
Scrutiny activity is appropriate.

The following questions should be asked in respect of each potential work 
programme item:

 Does the issue fall within a corporate priority;

 Is the issue of key interest to the public;

 Does the matter relate to a poor or declining performing service for 
which there is no obvious explanation; 

 Is there a pattern of budgetary overspends; 

 Is it a matter raised by external audit management letters and or audit 
reports?

 Is there a high level of dissatisfaction with the service;

10.3 If during the assessment process any of the following emerge, then 
the topic should be rejected:

 The topic is already being addressed elsewhere

 The matter is subjudice

 Scrutiny cannot add value or is unlikely to be able to conclude an 
investigation within the specified timescale

11 Access to Information

                           The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting 
                           the report writer:



Version 1 April 2009 (SH)

Name:           Katie Small
Designation: Scrutiny Officer

           Tel No:         01270 686465
            Email:         katie.small@cheshireeast.gov.uk





Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2016/17 – January 2017

Date: 27 March 
2017
Time:2.00pm
Venue:
Committee suite,
Westfields

Date 26 June  2017
Time:2.00pm
Venue:
Committee suite,
Westfields

Date: 25 
September 2017
Time:2.00pm
Venue:
Committee suite,
Westfields

Date: 27 
November 
2017
Time:2.00pm
Venue:
Committee 
suite,
Westfields

Date: 29 Jan 
2017
Time:2.00pm
Venue:
Committee 
suite,
Westfields

Date: 26 
March 2017
Time:2.00pm
Venue:
Committee 
suite,
Westfields

Essential items 

Item Description/purpose of 
report/comments

Outcome Lead Officer/ 
organisation/
Portfolio 
Holder

Suggested by Current position Key Dates/
Deadlines

Emotional Health 
and Wellbeing -
CAHMS

To scrutinise tier 3 and 4 of the 
service. partners to be invited and 
answer a series of questions

 People live 
well and for 
longer

 Deputy Chief 
Executive and 
Executive 
Director 
People , 
Director of 
Public Health 
Children and 
Families 
Portfolio 
Holder and 
Adults health 
and Leisure 
Portfolio 
Holder

The 
Committee

Spot light review 26 June 2016

List of questions 
to be agreed on 
30 January 2017

Independent 
Review Officer 

Further to meeting held on 31 
October, to receive a 6 monthly 

 A responsible 
effective and 

 Deputy Chief 
Executive and 

The 
Committee

Update report to 
include details of 

25 September 
2017



Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2016/17 – January 2017

Monitoring Items

Item Description/purpose of 
report/comments

Outcome Lead Officer/ 
organisation/
Portfolio 
Holder

Suggested by Current position Key Dates/
Deadlines

Performance 
Monitoring – C&F 
Scorecard

Quarterly performance reports  A responsible 
effective and 
efficient 
organisation

 Deputy Chief 
Executive and 
Executive 
Director 
People 
Children and 
Families 
Portfolio 
Holder

Ofsted Quarterly 
performance report

Q3 – 27.03.17
26.06.17
27.11.17

School 
Improvement/ 
School capacity

To receive the validation results  People have 
the life skills 
and education 
they need in 

 Deputy Chief 
Executive and 
Executive 
Director 

The 
Committee

Validated results 
2016.
Committee report

27 March 2017

Annual Report progress report efficient 
organisation

Executive 
Director 
People 
Children and 
Families 
Portfolio 
Holder

the 34 care leavers 
not in employment 
or education. 



Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2016/17 – January 2017

order to thrive People 
Children and 
Families 
Portfolio 
Holder

SEND Reforms To scrutinise the implementation 
of SEND Reforms

 People have 
the life skills 
and education 
they need in 
order to thrive

 Deputy Chief 
Executive and 
Executive 
Director 
People 
Children and 
Families 
Portfolio 
Holder

Director of 
Children’s 
Services

Task and Finish 
Review

25 September 
2017

Available Walking 
Routes to Schools

Further to the Call In, to receive an 
update on the recommendations 
agreed by Cabinet.

  Deputy Chief 
Executive and 
Executive 
Director 
People 
Children and 
Families 
Portfolio 
Holder

The 
Committee

Progress report. 26 June 2017

Children’s Centres To review the February 2016 
Council decision to de-designate 4 
children’s centres, following an 
informal briefing on 23 June 2016.

 People have 
the life skills 
and education 
they need in 
order to thrive

 Deputy Chief 
Executive and 
Executive 
Director 
People 
Children and 

The 
Committee

Progress report 27 March 2017



Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2016/17 – January 2017

Possible Future/ desirable items

Neglect/Innovation Fund (project Crewe) (Jan 2017) and potential Review of Neglect (possibly through a task and finish group) – 
April 2017. To be considered on 30 January to allow time for the evaluation report to be produced – Evaluation report to be 
submitted in due course and expansion of project Crewe be monitored.

Task and Finish Group on the transition process for care leavers (if required following a report to the Corporate parenting 
committee)

Families 
Portfolio 
Holder

Corporate 
Parenting

To review the annual report of the 
newly a established Corporate 
Parenting Committee

  Deputy Chief 
Executive and 
Executive 
Director 
People , 
Children and 
Families 
Portfolio 
Holder

The 
Committee

Annual report 25 September 
2017


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous meeting
	7 Children and Families Performance Scorecard - Quarter 3, 2016-17
	Appendix 1

	9 Forward Plan
	10 Work Programme
	CF updated work programme


